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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
RISK MANAGEMENT UNIT 

STATE HOUSE ANNEX, 25 CAPITOL STREET 
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301 

 
ADDENDUM #1 TO RFP 1608-14 

 
DATE OF BID OPENING: June 3, 2014           TIME OF BID OPENING:  2:00 PM 

 
FOR:  Consulting Services  

PART I of ADDENDUM #1 
 
I. In accordance with Section II, Bidding Instructions and Conditions, A. 7. RFP Inquiries, the State has 

received the following questions regarding the RFP and replies as follows:   
 

1. Question:  Will the State of New Hampshire consider a bid for just the pharmacy benefits part of the 
RFP?  

 
State’s Response:  No.   

 
 
2. Question:  Why is the contract out to bid?  Are there service issues with the current Consultant? 

State’s Response:  The contract is out to bid because the current contract ends on 12/31/2014. 
 

3. Question:  The request for proposal identifies the State’s involvement with the University of New 
Hampshire Institute for Health Policy and Practice (IHPP).  Is the consultant expected to provide any 
services to the IHPP?  Are there regular or scheduled meetings with IHPP the Consultant attends, if so 
how many per year? 

State’s Response:   The awarded vendor will not be required to provide services to IHPP, or attend 
meetings. 

 
4. Question:  We note the contract is not effective until 1/1/15.  Please confirm that the first yearly audit 

required will be for 2014 claims, sometime in the last half of 2015.  Section I. A. 1.  

State’s Response:   The required claims audits in 2015 will be for calendar year 2014 claims.  Claims 
audits shall begin as soon as the respective vendor can accommodate the data request. Historically 
claims audits have been initiated as early as February. 
 
 

5. Question:  Please confirm that the State wishes the claims audits to be performed on an "incurred" 
basis rather than a "paid" basis, which we understand from the narrative means that the audits would 
commence sometime around July 1st following the year to be audited.  Section III.B.1. 
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State’s Response:   No, the medical, FSA, and dental claims will be audited based on the date a claim is 
processed.  The State defines “processed” as the date a claim is processed, irrespective of the date it 
was incurred or paid.  Please see response to #4 for timeframe. 
 
 

6. Question:  Please confirm the State wishes to separate claim audits for medical claims and behavioral 
health claims (including substance abuse).  Section III.B.1 and "Health Benefit Claims Audit 
Requirements" on p.22. 

State’s Response:  No.  The State’s medical TPA contract includes behavioral health claims and the 
State expects one claims audit inclusive of all claim types sampled. 

 
 

7. Question:  Please provide additional information about what the State wants with regarding to 
evaluation of preadmission certification, concurrent review, discharge planning, retrospective claims 
review and individual and large case management.  Does the State want review of policies and 
procedures against NCQA guidelines?  Review of files?  On-site review with interviews or just a desk 
audit?  Section III.B. "Health Benefit Claims Audit Requirements" on p. 23. 
 
State’s Response:     The scope of audit is typically determined on a case by case basis by the State 
with input from the awarded vendor.  Historically our claims audits have been focused largely on 
things such as claims, controls, policies, procedures, and adherence to State benefit design.  Claims 
audits involve reviews of claims files requested by the awarded vendor as well as relevant 
documentation.  Medical, dental, and FSA claims audits have included an onsite review of stratified 
samples. 

 
 

8. Question:  Since the State has not yet completed its procurement for a short-term disability vendor, 
may we indicate our capabilities to perform this audit, but delay a discussion of methodology and 
pricing until the State requests an audit of the short-term disability vendor?  Section III.B.5. 

State’s Response:  Yes. 
 
 

9. Question:  For purposes of pricing, how many on-site meetings does the State anticipate will be 
required?  The initial kickoff meeting?  The final presentation?  Any others?  Section IV. 

State’s Response:  As indicated in Section III of the RFP, the State requires the awarded vendor to be 
on-site for various meetings and/or work activities on an as needed basis.  At a minimum, the on-site 
meetings include, but are not limited to the following:  presentation of claims audit findings, Governor 
and Council meetings, certain vendor claims and utilization meetings, and HBC meetings as required.  
The State expects the awarded vendor to engage in the required services in a manner that provides 
the highest level of customer service to the State; therefore, the volume of on-site meetings cannot be 
estimated further than currently described in the RFP.       
 
 

10. Question:  Are there any concerns regarding Pharmacy Vendor performance that require special 
emphasis on the audit? 
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State’s Response:    There are no identified audit concerns at this time; however the State and 
awarded vendor will discuss the scope of each audit during planning. 

 
 

11. Question:  Are there any concerns, or uncertainty regarding administration of drug costs? 

 
State’s Response:   There are no identified concerns at this time.   

 
 

12. Question:  Does the State of New Hampshire assume a full benefit plan review, including Copay, 
Formulary, manufacturer rebate, Clinical programs and Prior Authorization rules? 
 
State’s Response:   Yes.   
  
 

13. Question:  Will the State consider 100% claim review for pharmacy drug pricing and plan design audits, 
versus sampling of claims? 

State’s Response:   Yes.  The State requires a 100% claim review. 
 
 
14. Question:  Does the plan benefit for pharmacy require an audit of RDS or the pending EGWP program? 

State’s Response:   No. 
 
  

15. Question:  Will you provide the current contract and the past 3 years of hours billed for each required 
service?  

State’s Response:  Please see Attachment A to this addendum for a copy of the current contract.  No, 
the State will not supply billed hours, and the State’s estimated hours are included in Section IV, B. of 
the RFP. 

 
 
16. Question:  RE:   Actuarial Budget and Working Rates & Medicare Part D Subsidy Attestations; can a 

copy of recent reports and recommendations be provided?  
 
State’s Response:   Working rates are available online via this link:  
http://www.admin.state.nh.us/hr/MedicalandDentalContributionCharts.asp 

 
The State’s RDS attestations are not available. 

 
 
17. Question:  RE:  Actuarial GASB Valuations; what types of ad hoc analyses are anticipated or have been 

needed in the past? 

State’s Response:   Some additional financial analysis has been performed related to costs such as 
adjusted OPEB projections based on retiree eligibility laws.  

 

http://www.admin.state.nh.us/hr/MedicalandDentalContributionCharts.asp
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18. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); what is the average annual claims volume and payment amount?  

State’s Response:   This question is not relevant for purposes of responding to this RFP. 
 
 
19. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); what types of internal audits are performed by the administrators? Are the findings 
accessible to the audit vendor? 

State’s Response:   The types of internal audits are specific by vendor and typically are in accordance 
with their internal policies.  Access to internal vendor findings or reports will vary by vendor and will 
be discussed during audit planning. 

 
 
20. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); how will claims and accumulator data be provided to the audit vendor? 

State’s Response:   Please see the State’s response to question #7.   
 
 
21. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); what medium and format will claims data be provided?  (e.g. electronic, 837 files, access 
to data warehouse)  

State’s Response:   The State expects that the awarded vendor and State’s health benefit vendor will 
determine an appropriate means of transmitting needed data securely and in a format usable by both 
parties. 

 
 
22. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); how many providers by type (institutional, professional, ancillary) are participating in the 
network for the products offered to State employees and retirees? 

State’s Response:   This will vary by vendor type and contract.  This question is not relevant for 
purposes of responding to this RFP.   

 
 
23. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Claims Audits (Applicable to Medical, Drug, Behavioral Health, 

and Dental); are sample contracts with the administrators and providers available for review? 

State’s Response:   No. 
 
 
24. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Contract Procurements; is there a procurement process flow for 

the existing operations that can be shared with the vendor? 

State’s Response:   The procurement process takes place approximately 9-12 months in advance of an 
expiring contract and/or when new services are being purchased.  The bidding instructions are 
outlined in Section II of the RFP. 
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25. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Contract Procurements; how will employee/retiree membership 

and demographic information be provided to Procurement vendor? 

State’s Response:   The State will provide demographic data to the awarded vendor if necessary; the 
appropriate incumbent vendors will provide data as needed also.   

 
 
26. Question:  RE:  Health Benefit Vendor Contract Procurements; what medium and format will data be 

provided?  (e.g. electronic file, 834, access to HR systems) 

State’s Response:    Please see the response to  question #21. 
 
 
27. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; General HBC Consulting.  Can a copy of the existing 

organizational structure of the HBC and interface points be provided? 

State’s Response:   Information about the Health benefit Committee can be found by accessing this 
link:  http://admin.state.nh.us/hr/cba2013/CBA%202013-2015.pdf  

 
 
28. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; General HBC Consulting.  How many years of claims 

information will be made available to the health benefits consulting vendor? 

State’s Response:   The awarded vendor will have several years of summary reports available.  In 
addition, the awarded vendor may request data through the State if necessary.  

 
 
29. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; General HBC Consulting.  What medium and format will 

claims data be provided? 

State’s Response:   Please see the response to question #26. 
 
 
30. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Department Enrichment.  What tools and infrastructure are 

available for vendor monitoring? Is it possible to get documentation on monitoring process and high 
level architecture? 

 
State’s Response:   The State employs staff to manage vendor contracts on a day to day basis.  The 
awarded vendor will be expected to augment State staff efforts as needed.   The State does not use 
automated tools for vendor monitoring.   

 
 
31. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Department Enrichment.  Is there a separate 

department/team for knowledge management and training outside of the DAS? 

State’s Response:   DAS has access to a Bureau of Education and Training for more generic and 
business related topics.  Staff enrichment will be focused on topics such as the Affordable Care Act, 
emerging trends in the industry, new reimbursement models, and other topics as identified.   

http://admin.state.nh.us/hr/cba2013/CBA%202013-2015.pdf
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32. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Employee Engagement. Are sample communications for 

employee engagement available for review? 

State’s Response:   No.  
 

33. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Employee Engagement. What are the existing 
communication mediums (e.g. electronic, paper, social media) used for employee engagement? 

 State’s Response:   The State may communicate by any of the following methods:  mail, flyers, posters, 
postcards, the State’s website, or through internal email for agency HR administrators for additional 
distribution to employees.  The State may utilize social media in the future for employee engagement. 

 
 

34. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Data Analysis. What application and tools does the state 
use to store data? 

 State’s Response:   The State only stores data used to enroll employees in benefits.  This information is 
fed to our vendors in a variety of ways, typically placed on an FTP server for vendor retrieval.  The 
State does not store individually identifiable claims or utilization data. 

 

35. Question:  RE:  Health Benefits Consulting; Employee Engagement. What data analytics tools are 
utilized by the state? Is there a high-level architecture document available? 

State’s Response:   No.  The State does not perform data analytics with regard to employee 
engagement. 

 
 
 
PART II of ADDENDUM #1 

 
II. In accordance with Section II, Bidding Instructions and Conditions, A.9. Addenda, RFP 1608-14 is hereby 

amended and/or further clarified as follows:      
 
1. Amend Section V, Questionnaire, General Requirements and Questions for all Bidders, A. 
Consulting Experience and Background, # 1.  as follows: 

 
A. CONSULTING EXPERIENCE AND BACKGROUND 

 
1. The State is interested in understanding your organization’s history and experience in 
health benefits consulting. We are particularly interested in your experience with public sector 
clients with a labor/management environment. In (3) three pages or less, please provide a 
narrative addressing the following:   
 
a. A description of your organization’s client philosophy and management strategy; 
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b. A description of your organization’s experience and capabilities working within a 
labor/management environment similar to the State’s; 
 
c. Three (3) examples of recent projects with which your organization was engaged in 
providing consulting to labor/management groups. Please include your organization’s role in 
these projects.  

 
 

2. Amend Section V, Questionnaire, General Requirements and Questions for all Bidders, A. 
Consulting Experience and Background, # 4.  as follows: 

 
 

4. In (2) two pages or less, describe your approach in helping clients identify and implement 
strategies to contain costs and improve the quality of health care delivered to members with 
respect to achieving the highest value healthcare benefits for their employees, retirees and 
families. At a minimum, your description must include your organizations approach to but not 
be limited to the following: 
 

a. Quality care management; 
 

b. Cost-effective medical services; 
 

c. The most current prescription drug pricing arrangements; 
 

d. Financial modeling and benchmarking to assess performance and the like.    
 
 
CONTACT: Tammy Nelson 
 
NOTE: IN THE EVENT THAT YOUR PROPOSAL/BID INVITATION HAS BEEN SENT TO THIS OFFICE PRIOR TO 
RECEIVING THIS ADDENDUM, RETURN ADDENDUM WITHIN THE SPECIFIED TIME WITH ANY CHANGES 
YOU MAY WISH TO MAKE AND MARK ON THE REMITTANCE ENVELOPE PROPOSAL/BID INVITATION 
NUMBER AND OPENING DATE.  RETURNED ADDENDA WILL SUPERSEDE PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED BID. 
 
BIDDER____________________________ADDRESS_______________________ 
 
 
BY________________________________         ____________________________ 
   (this document must be signed) 
    
_______________________________TEL. NO.____________________________ 
   (please type or print name) 

 














































































